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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" AUGUST 2012

INTRODUCTION

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and audited financial statements of the chantable
company for the year ended 31 August 2012

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies on pages 24 to 27 of
the attached financial statements, and comply with the Chanitable Company’s memaorandum and articles of
association, the Companies Act 2006 and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice
“Accounting and Reporting by Chanties” as 1ssued in March 2005 {SORP 2005)

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Trust 15 a company imited by guarantee with no share capital and an exempt charity The Charitable
Company’s memorandum and articles of association (as amended on 18 August 2012} are the primary
governing documents of the academy trust

The directors act as the trustees for the charitable actwities of Qutwood Grange Academies Trust Limited and
are also directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law The Charitable Company 1s
known as Qutwood Grange Academies Trust

Details of the directors who served throughout the year except as noted are included i the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 1

Members’ Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Chantable Company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and habilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the charitable company are to establish and maintain a number of academies in
accordance with the requirements of the Master Funding Agreement

Method of Recruitment and Appointment of directors
The number of Directors of the company shall not be less than 3 but {unless determined by ordinary
resolution) shall not be subject to any maximum The articles of association set out the categories of directors
and this includes the following
o The Principal Sponsor (Outwood Grange Education)
The Chief Executive
Up to eight Sponsor Directors
Parent Directors (elected by parent members of the Academy Councils)
One Director appointed by the Secretary of State in the event that such a director is required
Any additional Directors appointed by the Secretary of State
Any further Directors appointed by the Secretary of State
Up to two Directors, if appointed by the Secretary of State in accordance with the terms of any
relevant funding agreements following the prowvision of a notice by the Company to terminate that
relevant funding agreement
o The Pringcipal Sponsor may appoint up to three co-opted Directors

o ¢ ¢ 0 0 0 ©
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o The number of Directors who are employees of the Company shall not exceed one third of the total
number of Directers including the Chief Executive
o The Pnnapal Sponsor shall appoint the Sponsor Directors and may appoint co-opted Directors

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and traming of directors

The traimng and induction provided for new directors will depend on their existing expenience Where
necessary, induction will provide training on chanity and educational, legal and financial matters All new
directors will be given a tour of all the academies and the chance to meet with staff and students All directors
are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that
they will need to undertake their role as directors

Organisational Structure

The management structure consists of four levels the Board of Directors, the Academy Councils, the
Executive Team and the Senior Leadership Teams The aim of the management structure 15 to devolve
responsibility and encourage mvolvement in dectsion making at all levels

The Directors are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the
Trust by the use of results and budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the Trust, capital
expenditure and senior staff appointments

The Academy Councils act as advisory bodies to the Outwood Grange Academes Trust {QGAT) Board

The executive and senior leaders are Chief Executive, Executive Principals, Associate Executive Principal,
Principals, Asscciate Principal, Vice Principals, Associate Vice Principals, Assistant Principals, Associate
Assistant Principals, Director of Business Services, Director of Executive Services, Director of Human Resources,
Director of Teaching School and Director of Finance These managers control the individual academies at an
executive level implementing the policies laid down by the Directors of the Board and reporting back to them
As a group the senior leaders are responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the
appointment of staff, though appointment boards for posts in the Executive Team always contain a Director

Risk Management

The Directors have assessed the major nisks to which the Trust 1s exposed, in particular those relating to the
speafic teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances The key risks
have been determined as

Health and safety 1ssues — a student, employee or volunteer 1s injured at work
Recruitment risk — recruiting someone unsuitable to work with children
Legal nsks — for example, risk that legislative requirements such as the Child Protection Act are not
complied with
¢ Financial nsks — uncertainty regarding future government funding streams

The Directors have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Trust faces, especially in the
operational areas {e g In relation to teaching, health and safety, builying and school trips) and in relation to
the control of finance There are systems in place to mimimise risks, including operational procedures (e g
vetting of new staff and visitors, supervision of school grounds) and internal financial controls Where
significant financial risk still remains the directors have ensured they have adequate insurance cover The Trust
has an effective system of internal financial controls and this 1s explained in more detall on pages 12 to 14
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Connected Organisations, including Related Party Retationships

During the year the Trust made the following recharges to Qutwood Grange Consultancy Company Limited, a
company with a number of Directors in common

e Recharges of teaching salanes - £ril (2011 - £179,000), recharges of support costs - £nil (2011 -
£26,000) At the year-end a balance of £213,712 (2011 - £83,000} was due from Outwood Grange
Consultancy Company, which is included in year-end debtors This donation was the final distribution
of Outwood Grange Consultancy Company’s assets and this company has now been liquidated

During the year the Trust made the following recharges to Outwood Sports and Leisure Company Limited, a
company with a number of Directors iIn common

e Recharges of support costs ~ £44,231 (2011 - £9,000) At the year-end a balance of £17,528 (2011 -
£6,636) was due from Outwood Grange Sports and Leisure Company Limited

During the year the Trust made the following recharges to Qutwood Grange Services Limited, a company with
a number of Directors in common

¢ Recharge of support costs £38,364 (2011 - £nl) At the year-end a balance of £11,273 {2011 - £nil)
was due from Outwood Grange Services Limited

During the year Outwood Grange Sperts and Leisure Company made a donation of £3,983 to the Trust {2011 -
£1,858)

A donation of £819,000 was received from Qutwood Grange School Fund Chanty This denation 1s restricted
for the specific purpose of the development of the Outwood Grange Academy buildings and site to provide
students with improved facilities

During the year the Trust paid legal fees of £33,685 on behalf of J Walkden, the former chairman Permission
from the Charities Commission was obtained prior to this being paid

Prier to them being appointed as directors, S Harness and D Earnshaw were paid £35,027 and £39,304
respectively, on fixed term contracts, vetted and approved by the DfE, for project management work on
converston of two schools to academies This employment ceased prior to their commencement as directors

There were school funds at the former Ripon, Portland and Valley schools which became under common
control following the date of conversion to academy status These have not been conschdated as they are not
material and there have been no transactions between the Trust and the school funds

Charitable Donations

During the year the Trust made charitable donations of £6,675 The details are set out below

*  £4,200 towards the cost of a rugby tour to Australia by 6 students at Qutwood Grange Academy

s £1,250 to Martin House Hospice This related to a contribution towards the cost of entering a national
band competition with all monies going to Martin House Hospice

+ £1,000 to VESA {Volunteer Eco Students Abroad) The donation was towards the cost of two students who
were doing volunteer work for VESA in a Fijian village

¢+ £200 to The Cross Project towards the cost of mentoring support to students

*  £25 to the Association of S5chool and College Leaders as a contribution towards the development of a self-
evaluation tool
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OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the chantable company is to advance education i the UK for the pubfic
benefit, 1n particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing its academies,

offering a broad curriculum with strong emphasis on the specified specialisms of those academies In setting
our objectives and planning our activities the Directors have given careful consideration to the Charity

Commission’s general gutdance on public benefit

The main objectives of the Trust during the year ended 31 August 2012 are summartsed in the table below

which also shows performance against the objectives

Objective

Performance

To ensure that every child enjoys the same high
quality in terms of resourcing, tuition and care

All OGAT academtes were inspected under the Ofsted
framework in the 2011/12 academic year, as follows
* Qutwood Grange — Outstanding

¢ Adwick —Satisfactory

*  Portland — Satisfactory (from Special Measures)

¢ Ripon-Good

* Valley - Good {from Notice to Improve)

Every academy saw an increase tn therr GCSE results
at A*-C including English and maths

To raise the standard of educational achievements of
all pupils

See results table below

To improve the effectiveness of the Trust by keeping
the curriculum and organisational structure under
continual review

The Trust has reviewed its structure in a number of
key areas to address changing organisational need,
including Business Services, Finance, Executive
Principals, ensuring that the arganisations’ structure
1s scalable as the organisation grows and that capacity
can be created in advance of need

To prowvide value for money for the funds expended

The EFA supported the Trust's self-assessment of its
financial management and governance as ‘Good’

in addition the DfE 1ssued Academy Spend Tables for
2010/11 containing information on income and
expenditure and showing spend per pupil data This
shows that OGAT has the lowest spend per pupil of ali
the academy trusts

To comply with all appropriate statutery and
curnculum requirements

Alt OGAT acadenues were inspected by Ofsted during
the academic year and were meeting all curriculum
regquirements

The EFA supported the Trust’s self-assessment of its
financial management and governance as ‘Good’

To maintain close links with industry and commerce

The Trust has undertaken exploration with a number
of industry leaders to discuss the role of academies in
producing an effective and highly skilled workforce
The discussions are continuing to look at the
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development of high quality apprenticeships covering
a wide range of industry sectors

To conduct the Trust's business in accordance with The EFA supported the Trust's self-assessment of its
the highest standards of integnty, probity and financial management and governance as ‘Good’
openness

The objectives and aims for 2012/13 are set out below

+ To progress on the journey towards all OGAT academies being recognised as "Outstanding’ by Ofsted

»  To ensure that all academies achieve Rank 10 for 5 A*- C GCSEs including English and Maths

*  To make strides towards a self-assessment of financial management and governance of ‘Outstanding’

e To positively influence the lives and achievement of more young people through the measured and steady
growth of the Trust, bringing more academies into the Family of Schools

* To ensure that every academy 1s able to generate a positive financial outturn at the end of each financial
year through efficient and effective curricutum-led financial planning

Strategies and Activities

The wision for OGAT i1s to put ‘Students First’ and achieve world class status This apples to all aspects of the
organisation and at every level The academies place students at the centre of everything they do, with a focus
on mamntaining a culture of success, a positive chmate for learning, and student attainment, achievement and
social and emotional development In raising standards for 1ts own students the Trust contributes to the raising
of educattonal standards and achievement generally across our academies through the mutual shanng of
knowledge, expertise and rescurces from across the education, busmess, industry and voluntary sectors of
Wakefield, Doncaster, Ripon and Worksop and the wider regional, national and global communities

The Trust will continue to develop its DNA in its academies through a ‘seven strand’ approach encompassing
Leadership with Vision and Efficacy, Quality in the Classroom, Curniculum Design, Monitering and Intervention,
Systems & Policies, Targeted Professional Development and Praise Culture

The whole purpose of schools 1s that children come first and everything that 1s done must reflect this single
goal The Trust’s mantra i1s an all-encompassing ‘Students First” 1t 15 an absclute prronty that every student,
irrespective of their starting pont, succeeds and achieves 1n order to do this, a high quality educationat
experience Is an entitlement for every student at the academies, with all parties — students, staff,
parents/carers and the wider community working together to achieve these goals for young people within the
communities of Outwood, Adwick, Ripon and Worksop Students with special needs are fully included and
benefit from the focus on personalised learning and individual plans

The Trust Board’s whole purpose i1s to raise standards for all students by sustaining and enhancing
performance and to develop the whole child, whilst at the same time engaging and collaborating with other
schools to help improve the life chances of all young people, locally, nationally and globally

Employees and disabled persons

The Trust 1s committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here We respect and
value positively differences in race, gender, sexual orientation, ability, class and age We strive vigorously to
remove conditions which place people at a disadvantage and we actively combat bigotry

The Trust considers all application forms from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
ndividuals concerned Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure that
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employment with the Trust continues The Trust’s policy 1s to prowide training, career development and
opportunities for promotion, which are, as far as possible, identical to those for other employees

The Trust works with employee trade unions and professional associations across all our academies and
engages In consultation, as required, to ensure that all aspects of the company affecting 1ts employees,
including financial and econemic factor, 1s discussed, conveyed and consulted on with them

Public Benefit

In exercising 1ts powers and duties the Trust has complied with its duty to have due regard to the Chanty
Comrmssion’s guidance on Public Benefit The main public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision of a
tugh quabity of education to its students This has been evidenced through the results achieved and feedback
from external assessments

* Outwood Grange Academy

Outwood Grange has been a National Training School for 8 years and has now been accredited as a National
Teaching School The academy’s performance 1s ssignificantly above average in relation to all of the national
floor standards for students’ attainment and progress

The predecessor college was judged as Outstanding when inspected by Ofsted in 2006 and, thereafter,
standards continued to be very high

In February 2012 an Ofsted inspection took place and the judgement was that the academy was Qutstanding
in all categories A summary of the key findings 1s set out below
o OQutwood Grange provides an outstanding quality of education
o Students’ achievement 1s outstanding All groups of students make progress at a better than
expected rate and attain very high standards by the end of Key Stage 4
o The sixth form 1s outstanding
o The overwhelming majonty of students are successful in going on to education, employment or
training after they leave the academy
o Outstanding teaching 1s at the root of students’ excellent achievement
o The drive for the academy’s success comes from the outstanding work of its leaders

s  Outwood Academy Adwick
Outwood Academy Adwick has twin specialisms in sport and science

In February 2012 an Ofsted inspection took place and the judgement was that the academy was Satisfactory in
ali aspects A summary of the key findings is set out below
o Achievement in the core subjects is showing signs of improvement despite being below the
national average Improvements in both English and Maths are evident in the progress made by
different groups of students
o Relationships between students and adults are generally positive and the vertical tutor groups
contribute well to their social awareness Attendance 1s improving
o The sixth form 1s satisfactory because students have a positive view of education and they have
high aspirations

s Outwood Academy Ripon
Qutwood Academy Ripon holds specialist status in technology

7
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In March 2012 an Ofsted inspection took place and the judgement was that the academy was Good in all
aspects A summary of the key findings 15 set out below

Q
(@]
(o]

This 1s a good academy with a good sixth farm

All groups of students make good progress and achieve well in both English and Maths

The quality of teaching 1s improving apace and 1s good with examples of outstanding practice The
academy is always striving to improve teaching and learning further and to increase the
percentage of outstanding lessons

Students behave well and are generally fully engaged during lessons

Leadership and management are good

e Outwood Academy Portland

OGAT started working with the Portland Comprehensive School in the summer of 2011 and 1t has been running
the school, in agreement with the local authority and governing body, since September 2011 The school
became an academy on June 1 2012

At 1ts previous Ofsted inspection in 2010, the schooi was judged to require special measures
In March 2012 a further Ofsted inspection took place and overall the school was judged as Satisfactory in all
categories The key findings are set out below

o
Q

The inspector 1s of the opinion that the school no longer requires special measures

Students are now making satisfactory and often good progress in lessons Extra teaching for
students who have fallen behind 1s effective Attainment 1s rising and is in ine with natienal
averages

Teaching 1s satisfactory overall, but with an increasing proportion of lessons that have good and
outstanding features

Behaviour 1s sensible, calm and respectful This marks a considerable improvemenit since the last
Inspection

Leaders at all levels have taken a concerted approach to improving outcomes for students that
have had a dramatic effect on standards, behaviour and attendance

s Qutwood Academy Valley

OGAT started working with Valliey Comprehensive School in the summer of 2011 This followed an Ofsted
inspection at which the school was given a Notice to Improve Since that point the school has undergone
significant change in terms of staffing, including at sernor management level The school became an academy
on 1june 2012 In May 2012 an Ofsted inspection took place and overall the school was judged as Good with
some Qutstanding features A summary of the key findings 1s set out below

o]

The inspector 1s of the opinion that the school no longer requires significant improvement The
school has improved significantly over the past year as a result of outstanding leadership and
management

Since the previous inspection students’ attainment has nsen from below average to above
average

Teaching has improved strongly and 1s now mainly good with some outstanding practice
Students’ behawviour 1s consistently outstanding and they have an extremely well-developed
awareness of how to stay safe

The sixth form 15 good

Outstanding leadership and management have resulted in the school making rapid progress in a
short period of time
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ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

The Trust s now tn 1Its third year of operation and three new academies have joined during the 2011/12
financial year The total numbers of students in the year ended 31 August 2012 were as follows (2010/111s

shown for comparative purposes}

2011/12 2010/11
Years 7-11
Outwood Grange Academy 1,780 1,793
Outwood Academy Adwick 976 1,023
Outwood Academy Ripon 411 451
Outwood Academy Portland 1,201 1,325
QOutwood Academy Valley 1,412 1,402
Years 12-13
Outwood Grange Academy 360 359
Outwood Academy Adwick 159 185
Outwood Academy Ripon 56 5S
Outwood Academy Portland 184 182
Outwood Academy Valley 190 197

The headline examination results for the 2011/12 academic year are summarised as follows

5+ A*-Cs including English & Maths 5+A*-Cs All subjects

2012 2011 2012 2011
Outwood Grange Academy 83% 77% 100% 99%
Outwood Academy Adwick 56% 51% 98% 96%
Qutwood Academy Portland 57% 41% 95% 83%
Outwood Academy Ripon 65% 48% 95% 83%
Outwood Academy Valley 66% 43% 97% 55%
Attendance
Academy Attendance Unauthonsed

Levels % Absence %

Outwood Grange Academy 9246 11
Outwood Academy Adwick 910 40
Outwood Academy Ripon 926 20
Outwood Academy Portland 907 32
Outwood Academy Valley 928 27

Going Concern

After making approprate enquires, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason it

9
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continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial report for the year

Most of the Trust’s income 1s obtained from the EFA {formerly the YPLA) in the form of recurrent grants, the
use of which 1s restricted to particular purposes The grants received from the EFA during the year ended 31
August 2012 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial
activities

The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets In accordance with the Charities Statement of Recommended
Practice, “Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2005}, such grants are shown in the Statement of
Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund The restricted fixed asset fund balance 15
reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful hfe of the assets concerned

During the year ended 31 August 2012, total expenditure of £25 4m was more than covered by recurrent grant
funding together with other Incoming resources The excess of Income over expenditure for the year
(excluding restricted fixed asset funds) was £1 6m

Af 31 August 2012 the net book value of fixed assets was £26 3m and movements In tangible fixed assets are

shown in note 13 to the financial statements The value of fixed assets includes the assets that had previously

been “donated” by Wakefield MDC and Doncaster MBC, together with assets donated in the year by North

Yorkshire County Council and Nottinghamshire County Council as part of the transfer agreements as set out

below

o The freeheld land and buildings at Ripon are occupied under a 125 year lease from the local authority
Consequently these are included in the balance sheet at a value of £2,912k (in accordance with the EFA
valuation) together with fixtures, furniture and equipment valued at £146k

e At Portland and Valley the land and buildings are occupied under a 125 year lease with the first 25 years
being from the PFI Company and consequently the assets have not been included in the balance sheet
The local authority did donate furmiture and equipment to the value of £1,309k

The major items of expenditure on fixed assets during the year were £0 5m on improvements to safeguarding
works at Outwood Grange {including the relocation of the reception), and £0 4m at Adwick on the new
conference facilities

The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of
all the academies

The deficits in the Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) are recognised on the balance sheet in
accordance with the provisions of FRS 17

Reserves policy
The directors review the reserve levels of the Trust annually This review encompasses the nature of income
and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves At the
year end the Trust hetd £5 4m of unrestricted reserves and £29 2m of restricted reserves Reserves are held to
ensure that the Academy has sufficient resources to continue to advance the education of pupils, including
incurring the necessary capital expenditure

10
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Under DfE guidelines, each Academy is allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the General Annual Grant (GAG)
receved in the year However, following discussions with the EFA regarding the planned capital investment by
the Trust over the next three to five years they have given permission for OGAT to carry forward surpluses
from the Cutwood and Adwick sites 1n excess of 12% up to and including the academic year 2014/15 This
relaxation does not apply to the Ripon, Portland and Valley academies

Financial position
The Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2012 of £34 6m comprising £35 5m of restricted funds and £5 4m of
unrestricted general funds and a pension reserve deficit of £6 3m

Investment Policy

The general policy objective Is to invest the surplus funds prudently The investment pricrities are
s Secunty of the invested capital,
s Ligudity of the invested capital,
s  And commensurate with security and liquidity, an optimum return on those investments

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

As a major sponsor of academies, OGAT will continue to develop its chain of academies in order to continue to
support children from challenging backgrounds We aim to provide the highest educational opportunities for
all children as well as providing professional development for all teaching and support staff so that our
academies continue to be self-developing and self-supporting in the future

Capacity buillding in advance of need 1s a big part of our drive, our willingness to engage with outside partners
and with new and innovative practices will help us to continue to secure the high levels of success already
achieved

AUDITORS
In so far as the directors are aware

. there 1s no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor 1s unaware, and
. the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor 1s aware of that information

Saffery Champness have expressed their willingness to remain in office as auditors to the Trust

APPROVAL

The report of the Board was approved on 'Cl December 2012 and signed on their behalf by

o~

R Harden
Chairman

11
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

As directors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Outwood Grange Acaderues
Trust has an effective and approprniate system of control, financial and otherwise However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the nisk of faillure to achieve business objectives, and can prowvide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The Trust Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and n accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to 1t in the funding agreement between
Outwood Grange Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education The Accounting Officer 15 also
responsible for reporting to the Trust Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities The Trust Board has formally met 13 times during the year
Attendance durning the year at meetings of the Trust Board was as follows

Director Meetings Attended Qut of a possible
Jwalkden 12 13
M Wilkins 12 13
D Beech 2 4
R Harden 10 13
P Watson 11 13
D Earnshaw 9 12
S Harness 2 3

The purpose of the system of Internal Control

The system of internal control 15 designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate atl nisk
of fallure to achieve policies, aims and objectives, it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness The system of internal control 1s based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prionitise the risk to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelhood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically The system of internal control has been in place in Outwood Grange Academies
Trust for the year ended 31 August 2012 and up to the date of the annual report and financial statements

Capacity to handle risk

The trustees have reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks The Trust Board 1s of
the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust’s
significant risks that have been in place for the year ending 31 August 2012 and up to the date of the approval
of the annual report and financial statements This process I1s regularly reviewed by the Trust Board

12
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The risk and control framework

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control 1s based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability In particular it includes

s Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board,

¢ Regular reviews by the Board of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts
and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes,

®  Setting targets to measure financial and other performance,

» Clearly defined purchasing {asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines,
s Delegation of authority and segregation of duties,

¢ identification and management of risks

In additson the Directors have considered the guidance for directors of public listed companies contained
within the Turnbull Report They believe, although it 1s not mandatory for the Trust, it should, as a publicly
funded body, adopt these guidelines as best practice Accordingly they have

*  Set policies on internal controls which cover the following
o The type of nisks the Trust faces,
o The level of nsk which they regard as acceptable,
o The likelihood of the risk matenalising,

o The Trust's ability to reduce the incidence and impact on the Trust’s operation of nsks that
do not matenalse,

o The costs of operating particular controls related to the benefit obtained,

e Clanfied the responsibility of the Senior Leadership Team to implement the Directors’ policies and to
identify and evaluate risks for the Directors’ consideration,

s Explained to employees that they have responsibility for internal control as part of their
accountability for achieving objectives,

s Embedded the control system in the Trust’s operations so that it becomes part of the culture of the
Trust,

e Developed systems to respond quickly to evolving risks arising from factors within the Trust and to
change the external environment, and

¢ Included procedures for reporting failings immediately to appropriate levels of management and the
Directors’ together with details of corrective action being undertaken
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The directors have considered the need for a specific internal audit function and have decided not to appoint
an internal auditor However, the directors appointed Saffery Champness, as Responsible Officer (RO} The
RO's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the academy trust’s
financial systems The RO reports to the Directors on a quarterly basis on the operation of the systems of
control and on the discharge of the Trust Board’s financial responsibilities  The RO function has been fully
delivered in ine with the EFA’s requirements The appontment of Saffery Champness as RO does not
compromise the independence of the external audit, as adequate safeguards are in place to manage any
conflict of interest, including the use of separate teams and reporting lines

However, the requirements In respect of internal audit arrangements have changed with effect from 1
September 2012 and the Directors will put in place new arrangements to comply with those requirements

These arrangements can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded,
transactions are authonsed and properly recorded, and that matenal errors or irregularities are erther
prevented or would be detected within a timely penod

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal contral During the year in guestion the review has been informed by

e The work of the Responsible Officer,
¢ The work of the external auditor,

» The financial management and governance self-assessment process and the audit performed by the
EFA

e The work of the executive team within the academy trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework

Approved by order of the members of the Trust Board on I?December and signed on its behalf by

W wv%ma
R Harden M Wilkins

Charr Accounting Officer
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Outwood Grange Academies Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust board and the Education Funding Agency of matenal irregulanty, impropriety and non-
compliance with EFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the
academy trust and the Secretary of State As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Acadermies Finanaial Handbeook

| confirm that | and the academy trust board are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy trust, or maternial non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook

| confirm that no instances of matenial irreguianty, impropriety or funding non-comphance have been
discovered to date

Michae! wilkins

Accounting Officer
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OUTWOQOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITIES

The trustees (who are also directors of Qutwood Grange Academies Trust for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the trustees’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with Annual
Accounts Requirements issued by the Education Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} and applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under company law
the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Chantable Company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including 1ts income and expenditure for that period In preparing these financial statements, the
trustees are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

observe the methods and principles in the Charnities SORP,

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been fellowed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

. prepare the financiat statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inapproprate to presume that
the Charnitable Company will continue in business

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Charitable Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Chartable Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charitable Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Chantable Company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the EFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes intended

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Charitable Company’s website Legsslation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other junsdictrons

Approved by order of the members of the trust board on 14 December and signed on its behalf by

Wob 2~

R Harden
Chair
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE TRUST BOARD OF
OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements on pages 20 to 61 The financal reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

This report i1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors

As explaimned more fully in the Trustees’ Responstbilities Statement, the trustees (who are also the directors of
the company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit iInvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasanable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This Includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the charnity's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the trustees, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In additien, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors’ Report to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinion the financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the charity’s state of affairs as at 31 August 2012 and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including 1ts income and expenditure, for the year then ended,

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
and the Accounts Direction 2011/12 issued by the EFA, and

= have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE TRUST BOARD OF
OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST LIMITED

Matters on which we are reguired to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you If, in our opimion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

&;JQ»,& Chraunpuss

Cara Turtingten (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of

Saffery Champness

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

Harrogate Office

Mitre House

North Park Road

Harrogate

HG1 5RX

2] PQevotr 20T
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Independent Auditor's Report on Regularity to the Trust Board of Outwood Grange Academies Trust Limited
and the Education Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 5 December 2012 and further to the
requirements of the EFA, we have carried out a review to obtamn assurance ahout whether, in all matenal
aspects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by the academy trust during the period 1 September
2011 to 31 August 2012 have been applied to the purposes rdentified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorittes which govern them

This report s made solely to the trust board and the EFA Our review work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the trust board and the EFA those matters we are required to state to itin a report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the trust board and EFA, for our review work, for this repart, or for the opinion we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the trust board and auditors

The trust board 1s responsible, under the requirements of the Academies Act 2010, subsequent legislation and
related regulations, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received are applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authonties which govern them

Our responsibilities for this review are established in the UX by our professton’s ethical guidance and the audit
guidance set out in the EFA’s Financial Handbook and Accounts Direction We report to you whether, in our
opinion, anything has come to our attention in carrying out our review which suggests that 1n all matenial
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the penod 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2012
have not been applied to purposes intended by Parllament and the finanaial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern them

Basis of opinion
We conducted our review 1n accordance with the Academies Financial Handbook and the Accounts Direction
issued by the EFA

Opimion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all matenial aspects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2012 have not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them

3191@1‘2 Cl«ow/m;sﬁ
Cara Turting (Semor Statutory Auditor}

For and on behalf of
Saffery Champness
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
Harrogate Office

Mitre House

North Park Road
Harrogate

HG1 SRX

2( Do Qaer~ 290
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° AUGUST 2012 {Including Income

and Expenditure Account)

Incoming resources

Incomung resources from generated
funds

Voluntary Income
Activities for Generating Funds
Investment income

Incoming resources from charitable
activities

Funding for the Trust's educational
operations

Total Incoming Resources

Resources expended
Charitable Activities

Trust's educational operations
Governance costs

Total resources expended

Net incoming resources before
transfers

Gross transfer between funds

Net income/{expenditure) for the year
Other recognised gains and losses

Actuanal gamns/{losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes

Net movement in funds

Funds brought forward at 1 September
2011

Funds carried forward at 31 August
2012

Note

18

28

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
funds General fixed Asset 2012 2011
Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,830 (2,926) 4,368 4,272 264
183 - - 183 584
115 - - 115 16
596 27,382 249 28,227 22,183
3,724 24,456 4,617 32,797 23,047
670 23,577 1,098 25,345 17,601
- 52 - 52 37
670 23,629 1,098 25,397 17,638
3,054 827 3,519 7,400 5,409
{205) (2,078) 2,283 - -
2,849 {1,251) 5,802 7,400 5,409
- (1,095) - {1,095) 839
2,849 (2,346) 5,802 6,305 6,248
2,561 5,310 20,466 28,337 22,089
5,410 2,964 26,268 34,642 28,337
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" AUGUST 2012 {Including Income
and Expenditure Account)

All of the trust’s activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods

A Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses is not required as all gains and losses are tncluded in the
Statement of Financial Activities
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 AUGUST 2012

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets
Investments

Current Assets
Stock
Debtors

Cash at bank and 1n hand

Current Liabihities
Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current habilities

Net assets excluding defined benefit penston scheme

hability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Net assets including defined benefit pension hability

Funds of the Trust

Restricted Income funds
Fixed asset fund

General fund

Pension Reserve

Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted Funds
General Fund

Total unrestricted funds

Note

13
14

15
16

17

28

19
19
28

19

Company Registration No. 6995649

2012 2012 2011 2011
£000 £000  £000  £000

26,267 20,437

- 2,000

26,267 22,437
8 9
4,236 1,339
12,804 7,581
17,048 8,929
(2,361) {1,789}

14,687 7,140

40,954 29,577

40,954 29,577

(6,312) {1,240)

34,642 28,337

26,268 20,466

9,276 6,550

{6,312) (1,240)

29,232 25,776

5,410 2,561

5,410 2,561

34,642 28,337

The financial statements on pages 20 to 61 were approved by the trustees and authonsed for 1ssue on {9

December 2012 and are signed on their behalf by

R Harden Director M‘UJ{/—'
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012

Note 2012 2011

£000 £000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 22 2,817 4,371
Cash transferred on conversion 2,612 -
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 23 105 18
Capital expenditure 24 (2,311) (2,557}
Management of liquid resources 2,000 (2,000}
Increase/{Decrease) in cash in the year 5,223 {168}
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds 25
Net funds at 1 September 2011 7,581 7,749
Net funds at 31 August 2012 12,804 7,581
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012

1. Statement of Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, the Charity Commission ‘Statement of Recommended
Practice Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ {*'SORP 2005’), the Academies Accounts Direction 1ssued by
the EFA and the Companies Act 2006 A summary of the pnincipal accounting policies, which have been applied
consistently, except where noted, 15 set out below

Going Concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate 1 e whether there are any matenial
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern The trustees make this assessment in respect of a penod of one year from the
date of approval of the financial statements

Incoming Resources

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, certainty of
receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient rehabibty

*  Grants receivable

Grants are included 1n the statement of financial activities on a recelvable basis The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period 1s shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet Where income 1s received in advance of entitlement of receipt its
recognition Is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income Where entitlement occurs
before income 1s received, the iIncome 1s accrued

s Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there 1s certainty of receipt and the amount can
be reliably measured

¢  Otherincome

Other income, including the hire of facilities, I1s recognised in the period 1t 1s recevable and to the
extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service

» Donated services and gifts in kind

The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Academy are recognised at their open
market value in the period in which they are receivable as incoming resources, where the benefit to
the academy trust can be reliably measured An equivalent amount is included as expenditure under
the relevant heading in the Statement of Financial Activittes, except where the gift in kind was a fixed
asset in which case the amount included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over
the useful economic ife in accordance with the academy trust’s policies
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012
Resources Expended

All expenditure 1s recognised in the period in which a hability 1s incurred and has been ¢lassified under
headings that aggregate all costs related to that activity Where costs cannot be directly attributed to
particular headings they have been allocated on a basis consistent with the use of resources, with central staff
costs allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of asset’s use
Other support costs are allocated based on the spread of staff costs

+  Costs of generating funds

These are costs incurred n attracting voluntary income, and those incurred in trading activities that
raise funds

s Charntable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust’s educational operations
s Governance costs

These include the costs attributable to the academy trust’s compliance with constitutional and
statutory requirements, including audit, strategic management, Board and Academy Council meetings
and reimbursed expenses

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT
Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic ife The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of
Financial Activities and carned forward in the balance sheet Depreciation on such assets is charged to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities over the expected useful economic life of the
related asset on a basis consistent with the academy trust’s depreciation policy

Assets costing less than £1,000 are wnitten off in the year of acquisition
Depreciation

Depreciation 1s provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to wnite off
the cost of each asset on a straight line basis over their expected useful hives as follows

Leasehold land 0 8%
Leasehold builldings 2%
Furmiture and equipment 10%
Plant and machinery 10%
Computer and educational equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost Depreciation on these assets 1s not charged until they
are brought into use

A review for mpairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities

Leased Assets

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership remain
with the lessor are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight line basis over the lease term
The land and buildings at Qutwood Grange and Ripen which are occupied under a long lease {125 years) are
brought into the balance sheet and depreciated The land and buildings at Adwick are occupied under a short-
term lease pending completion of the new academy building and are not currently included in the balance
sheet The land and buildings at Portland and Valley are cccupied under a long-term lease (125 years) but are
also subject to a PFI agreement, which has been classed as an operating lease Consequently the assets are not
included in the balance sheet and the costs are charged to the statement of financial activities as set out
above

Stocks
Stocks, when held, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Taxation

The academy trust 1s constdered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporaticn tax purposes Accordingly,
the academy trust 1s potentially exempt from tax in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes

Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (‘TPS’}
and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS’} These are defined benefit schemes, are contracted out of
the State Earnings-Related Pension Scheme ('SERPS’), and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust

The TPS 1s an unfunded scheme and contnbutions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of guinquennial valuations using a prospective benefit method As stated in Note 28, the
TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the academy trust is unable to dentify its share of the underlying assets
and habilhities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis The TPS 1s therefore treated as a defined
contribution scheme and the contributions recognised as they are pard each year

26




OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012

Local Government Pension Scheme (four schemes, Outwood, Adwick and Ripon are in separate schemes,
Porttand and Valley zre in the same scheme)

The LGPS 15 a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separate
trustee administered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and habilities are measured on
an actuanial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of
return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the habilities The actuanal
valuations are obtained at least tnennially and are updated at each balance sheet date The amounts charged
to operating surplus are the current service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments They
areincluded as part of staff costs Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial
Activities if the benefits have vested If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised
over the period untit vesting occurs The expected return on assets and the interest costs are shown as a net
finance amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to interest Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in other gains and losses

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be appled to specific capital purposes imposed by the
EFA/PFS/other funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the EFA/DfE
New Academies

The conversion from a state maintained school to an academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable assets
and liabilities and the operation of the school for £nil consideration and has been accounted for under the
acquisition accounting method

The assets and liabdities transferred on conversion from the maintained schools Ripon College, Portland
School and Valley School to an academy trust have been valued at their fair value The amounts are recognised
under the appropniate balance sheet categories with a corresponding amount recognised in voluntary income
as a gift The amounts are shown in the following table

Ripon £k Portland £k Valley £k

Land and Butldings 2,912 - -

Other fixed assets 147 369 940
Pension habibities {625) (1,414) {1,706}
School budget surplus 302 1,424 886

27




OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012

2 GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT {GAG)

QOutwaood Outwood
Grange Grange
2012 2011
£000 £000
a. Results and Carry Forward for the
Year
GAG brought forward from previous year 3,301 1,667
GAG allocation for current year 11,059 11,332
Total GAG available to spend 14,360 12,999
Recurrent expenditure from GAG {8,447} (7,766)
Fixed assets purchased from GAG {1,593} {1,932)
GAG carried forward to next year 4,320 3,301
Maximum permitted GAG carry forward at
end of current year {12% of allocation for
current year) (1,327) {1,360)
GAG carry forward agreed with EFA {4,320) {3,301)
GAG to surrender to DfE - -
{12% rule breached if result 1s positive) no breach no breach
b. Use of GAG brought forward from
previous year for recurrent purposes}
(of the amount carried forward each year,
a maxsimum of 2% of GAG can be used for
recurrent purposes Any balance, up to a
maximum of 12%, can only be used for
capital purposes)
Recurrent expenditure from GAG In
current year 8,447 7,766
GAG allocation for current year (11,059) {11,332}
GAG allocation for previous year x 2% (227) (224)
GAG b/fwd from previous year in excess {2,839) (3,790}
of 2%, used on recurrent expenditure in
current year
{2% rule breached if result 1s positive) no breach no breach
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012

Adwick Adwick
2012 2011
£000 £000
a. Results and Carry Forward for the
Year
GAG brought forward from previous year 2,418 1,370
GAG allocation for current year 5,955 6,552
Total GAG available to spend 8,373 7,922
Recurrent expenditure from GAG (4,470) (5,124)
Fixed assets purchased from GAG (378) (380)
GAG carned forward to next year 3,525 2,418
Maximum permitted GAG carry forward at
end of current year (12% of allocation for
cufrent year) (715) (786)
GAG carry forward agreed with EFA (3,525) (2,418)
GAG to surrender to DfE - -
{12% rule breached If result i1s positive) no breach no breach
b. Use of GAG brought forward from
previous year for recurrent purposes
{of the amount carried forward each year,
a maximum of 2% of GAG can be used for
recurrent purposes Any balance, upto a
maximum of 12%, can only be used for
capital purposes)
Recurrent expenditure from GAG in
current year 4,470 5,124
GAG allocation for current year {5,955} (6,552)
GAG allocation for previous year x 2% (131) (133)
GAG b/fwd from previous year in excess {1,616} {(1,561)
of 2%, used on recurrent expenditure in
current year
(2% rule breached if result 1s positive) no breach no breach

No breaches - see note below
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2012

Ripon Portland Valley
2012 2012 2012
£000 £000 £000
a. Results and Carry Forward for the
Year
GAG brought forward from previous year - - -
GAG allocation for current year 3,061 1,920 1,946
Total GAG available to spend 3,061 1,920 1,946
Recurrent expenditure from GAG (2,943) (1,757) {1,748)
Fixed assets purchased from GAG - {9) (98)
GAG carried forward to next year 118 154 100
Maximum permitted GAG carry forward at
end of current year (12% of allocation for
current year) 367 230 234
GAG to surrender to DfE {249) {76} (134)
(12% rule breached if result 1s posstive) no breach no breach no breach
b. Use of GAG brought forward from
previous year for recurrent purposes
(of the amount carrted forward each year,
a maximum of 2% of GAG can be used for
recurrent purposes Any balance, upto a
maximum of 12%, can only be used for
capital purposes)
Recurrent expenditure from GAG In
current year 2,943 1,757 1,748
GAG allocation for current year (3,061) (1,920) (1,946)
GAG allocation for previous year x 2% - - -
GAG b/fwd from previous year in excess (118) (163} (198)
of 2%, used on recurrent expenditure In
current year
(29 rule breached If result i1s positive) na breach no breach no breach

No breaches — see note below

Under DFE guidelines, each Academy 1s allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the General Annual Grant (GAG)
received in the year However, following discussions with the EFA (formerly the YPLA} regarding the planned
capital Investment over the next three to five years they have given permission for all surpluses to be carried
forward for the current year and up to 2014/15 {for Outwood Grange and Adwick} This agreement 15
conditional upon the monitoring of the investment plans for the two sites and the progression of the cap:tal
works as planned
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
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3. VOLUNTARY INCOME

Other Donations

Donation of surplus from NYCC

Donation of surplus from NCC

Donation of assets from NYCC

Donation of assets from NCC

Donations from related companies
Pension deficits transferred on conversion

4. ACTIVITIES FOR GENERATING FUNDS

External fees
Hire of facihities
Other

5. INVESTMENT INCOME

Short-term deposits

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
302 - 302 -
2,310 - 2,310 -
- 3,059 3,059 -
- 1,309 1,309 -
218 819 1,037 264
- (3,745) (3,745) -
2,830 1,442 4,272 264
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
61 - 61 293
84 - 84 14
38 - 38 277
183 - 183 584
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
115 - 115 16
115 - 115 16
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6. FUNDING FOR THE TRUST’S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS {All Restricted Funds)

Unrestrict Restricted Total Total
ed Funds Funds 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Department for Education grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 23,943 23,943 17,884
Start Up - 109 109 894
Capital Grants - 249 249 651
Standards Fund - - - 526
Other DfE grants - 2,512 2,512 -
- 26,813 26,813 19,955
Other Government Grants
Local Authority B 537 537 643
Other - 281 281 1,060
= 818 818 1,703
Other Income
Catering 596 - 596 525
596 27,631 28,227 22,183
7. RESOURCES EXPENDED
Non Pay Expenditure Total Total
Other
Staff Costs Premises costs 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs 12,956 1,086 2,302 16,344 11,984
Allocated support costs 5,277 1,516 2,208 9,001 5,617
18,233 2,602 4,510 25,345 17,601
Governance costs including allocated
support costs - - 52 52 37
18,233 2,602 4,562 25,397 17,638
Incoming/Outgoing resources for the year include
2012 2011
£000 £000
Operating leases 63 54
Fee payable to auditor — audit (current year) 19 10
Fee payable to auditor — audit (previous year) 138 -
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Fee payable to auditor — other services
Profit/loss on disposal of fixed assets

8. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES — TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

DIRECT COSTS

Teaching and educational support staff costs
Depreciation

Educational supplies

Examination fees

Staff development

External fees

Other direct costs

ALLOCATED SUPPORT COSTS
Support staff costs

Depreciation

Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Rent and rates

Heat and light

Insurance

Security and transport

Catering

Technology costs

Bank interest and charges
Telephones

Marketing & Publications
Professtonal fees re new academies
16-19 Bursary Payments

Other support costs

101

Unrestricted Restricted 2012 2011
Funds Funds

£000 £000 £000 £000
43 12,913 12,956 9,928
- 1,086 1,086 576
- 017 617 491
- 697 697 465
- 110 110 34
- 630 630 451
- 248 248 39
43 16,301 16,344 11,984
250 5,027 5,277 3,431
- 12 12 11
- 115 115 193
- 675 675 364
- 73 73 69
- 115 115 41
- 464 464 291
- 177 177 110
- 132 132 106
377 98 475 443
- 316 316 298
- 12 12 9
- 92 92 49
- 145 145 100
- 53 53 -
- 30 30 -
- 838 838 102
627 8,374 9,001 5,617
670 24,675 25,345 17,601
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9. GOVERNANCE COSTS

Unrestricted Restricted 2012 2011
Funds Funds £000 £000
£000 £000
Legal and Professional Fees - 3 3 17
Auditor’s remuneration
- Audit of financial statements {(current year) - 19 19 10
- Audit of financial statements {previous year}) - 18 18 -
- Responsible officer audit - 12 12 10
Support staff costs - - - -
Governors' reimbursed expenses - - - -
- 52 52 37
10. STAFF COSTS
Staff costs during the period were
2012 2011
£000 £000
Wages and salares 14,374 11,293
Soctal security costs 1,041 753
Pension contributions 2,118 1,313 |
17,533 13,359
Supply teacher costs 567 412
Compensation payments 133 -
18,233 13,771

The average number of persons {including senior management team} employed by the Trust duning the

year ended 31 August 2012 expressed as full trme equivalents was as follows

2012 2011
No. No.

Charitable Activities
Teachers 416 197
Administration and support 383 173
799 370
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14 (2011 - 8) employees earned more than £60,000 per annum (including taxable benefits but excluding
employers’ pension contributions) during the year ended 31 August 2012 The total emoluments of these
employees were In the following ranges

2012 2011
Number Number
£60,001 - £70,000 6 2
£70,001 - £80,000 2 -
£80,001 - £50,000 2 2
£90,001 - £100,000 1 1
£100,001 - £110,000 2 2
£180,001 - £190,000 1 1

All of the above employees earning more than £60,000 per annum participated in the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme During the year ended 31 August 2012, pension contributions for these staff amounted to
£154,625 (2011 - £109,687)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

The Chief Executive only receives remuneration in respect of services he provides undertaking the roles of the
Chief Executive and not in respect of his service as a trustee Total emoluments (also being those of the highest
paid director) are as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000

Remuneration for teaching services 182 182
Contributions to the teachers’ pension scheme 26 26
208 208

12.

The teachers’ pension scheme Is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme and the accrued pension
entitlement and lump sum In relation to the highest paid director cannot be identified

During the year ended 31 August 2012, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £nil (2011 - £nil} were
reimbursed to no (2011 - 0) Directors for their services as a Director

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE
In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has purchased insurance to protect Directors
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissians occurring whilst on Trust business

The insurance provides cover up to £5m (2011 - £1m) on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31
August 2012 was £4,664 (2011 - £2,000) The cost of this insurance 1s included n the total insurance cost
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13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost
At 1 September 2011

Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 August 2012

Depreciation

At 1 September 2011
Charged in year
Disposals

At 31 August 2012

Net book values
At 31 August 2012
At 31 August 2011

Long
leasehold
land & Furniture & Computer Assets under

buildings Equipment Equipment construction Total
£000 £000 £0600 £000 £000
16,819 1,039 987 2,614 21,459
3,881 863 1,664 520 6,928
2,572 42 - {2,614} -
23,272 1,934 2,651 520 28,387
587 109 326 - 1,022
415 292 391 - 1,098
1,002 401 717 - 2,120
22,270 1,543 1,934 520 26,267
16,232 930 661 2,614 20,437

14. INVESTMENTS

The chantable company owns 100% of the 1ssued ordinary shares in Outwood Grange Services Limited, a

company incorporated in England at a cost of £1 The principal business activity of Outwood Grange

Services Limited 15 the provision of educational services and the management of lettings Consolidated

accounts have not been prepared for the year as the activities were immatenal to the group

For the year ended 31 August 2012, the imitial unaudited position shows that Outwood Grange Services
Limited had aggregate net habilities of £13k and a deficit of £13k

15. STOCK

Stationery
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16. DEBTORS

2012 2011
£000 £000
Trade debtors 375 51
Other debtors 2,764 644
Prepayments 1,097 644
4,236 1,339

17. CREDITORS. AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2012 2011
£000 £000
Trade creditors 724 811
Sundry creditors 126 186
Taxation and social security 50 317
Accruals 1,461 475
2,361 1,789
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18. FUNDS

Outwood Grange Academy

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Grant

Other DfE/EFA Grants
Other Grants

Other Income

Pension Reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/EFA caprtal grants

Capital expenditure from GAG
Sponsorship

Private sector capital

Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

Notes

Balance at
31 August Incoming Resources Gains, losses  Balance at 31
2011 Resources Expended andtransfers  August 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
3,301 11,059 (8,575) {1,465} 4,320
290 - (290) - -
136 531 (496) - 171
117 396 (439) - 74
- 899 - - 899
(1,339) - - (842) (2,181)
915 131 - - 1,046
3,238 - (619) 1,593 4,212
15,548 - - - 15,548
32 - - - 32
22,238 13,016 {10,419} {714) 24,121
2,355 717 (358) - 2,714
2,355 717 (358) - 2,714
24,593 13,733 {10,777) (714) 26,835

(1} General Annual Grant {GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the acadermies  Each
Academy is allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the General Annual Grant (GAG) received in the

year However, following discussions with the EFA regarding the planned capital investment by the

Trust over the next three to five years they have given permission for OGAT to carry forward

surpluses from the Outwood and Adwick sites in excess of 12% up to and including the academic year

2014/15

{n) Start-up grant 15 intended to cover expenditure on acquiring teaching and learning matenals and to
cover prohlems regarding economies of scale
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{in) Other DfE/EFA grants include a range of grants which are to be used for educational purposes These
include School Development Grant, EMAG, 1 2 1 Tuttion, Pupil Premium, Bursary Fund and Golden
Hello

{1v) Other grants also include a range of grants which are to be used for educational purposes These

include SEN low incidence, Graduate Teacher Programme, Teachers Pay Grant, Newly Quabfied

Teachers and School Sports Partnership

(v) Other restricted income relates to a donation from Qutwood Grange School Fund Charity The
donation was made for the specific purpose of the development of the Outweod Grange Academy
buildings and site to provide students with improved facilities

(w1) DfE/EFA capital grants include Devolved Formula Capital and Academies Capital Maintenance Fund
The latter grant 1s provided towards specific named projects

(v} The gross transfer from the restricted general fund to the restricted fixed asset fund represents the
total capital expenditure funded from the General Annual Grant in the year

(vin} Restricted fixed assets were funded by government grants, capital contributions or were donated by

the local authority

Outwood Academy Adwick

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant {GAG)
Start Up Grant

Other DfE/EFA Grants
Other Grants

Pension Reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/EFA capital grants

Capital expenditure from GAG
Sponsorship

Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

Balance at
31 August Incoming Resources Gains, losses  Balance at 31
2011 Resources Expended  andtransfers  August 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,418 5,955 {4,499) (349) 3,525
405 - (405) - -
- 602 (602) - -
(117) 233 (233) - (117)
99 - - (195) (96)
348 9 - - 357
294 - (309) 378 363
91 - - - 91
3,538 6,799 {6,048) (166) 4,123
206 286 (221) - 271
206 286 {221) - 271
3,744 7,085 {6,269) {166) 4,394
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The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows

(1)

{n}

{m)

()

{v)

{wi)

{vs)

General Annual Grant {GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the academies  Each
Academy 15 allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the General Annual Grant {GAG) received in the
year However, following discussions with the EFA regarding the planned capital investment by the
Trust over the next three to five years they have given permission for OGAT to carry forward
surpluses from the Outwood and Adwick sites in excess of 12% up to and including the academic
year 2014/15

Start-up grant i1s intended to cover expenditure on acquiring teaching and learning materials and to
cover problems regarding economies of scale

Other DFE/EFA grants include a range of grants which are to be used for educational purposes These
include School Development Grant, EMAG, 1 2 1 Tuition, Extended Schools, Pupil Premium, Bursary
Fund and Golden Hello

Cther grants also include a range of grants which are to be used for educational purposes These
include SEN low incidence, Post LIG Deprivation, National Strategies, Aim Higher, and PE Teachers,

DfE/EFA capital grants relate to Devolved Formula Capital which 1s to be used for the improvement of
the site generally

The gross transfer from the restricted generat fund to the restricted fixed asset fund represents the
total capital expenditure funded from the General Annual Grant in the year

Restricted fixed assets were funded by government grants, capital contributions or were donated by
the local authority
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Balance at
31 August incoming Resources Gains, losses  Bafance at 31
Outwood Academy Ripon 2011 Resources Expended and transfers  August 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 3,061 (2,975) 32 118
Other DfE/EFA Grants - 54 (45) - 9
Other Grants - 66 (66) - -
Pension Reserve - (625) - (106} (731)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/EFA capital grants - 109 - - 109
Sponsorship - 3,058 (93) 205 3,170
Total Restricted Funds - 5,723 (3,179) 131 2,675
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds - 391 (82) (205} 104
Total unrestricted funds - 391 (82) {205) 104
Total funds - 6,114 (3,261) {74) 2,779
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows
1) General Annual Grant {GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the academies Each

Academy 1s allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the General Annual Grant (GAG) received in the

year

nj Other DfE/EFA grants include a range of grants which are to be used for educational purposes These

include Pupil Premium and Bursary Fund

) Other grants also include a range of grants which are to be used for educational purposes These
include SEN low incidence, Graduate Teacher Programme, Your Consortwum and Scheool Sports
Partnershep

Iv) The gross transfer from the restricted general fund to the restricted fixed asset fund represents the

total capital expenditure funded from the General Annual Grant in the year

v} Restricted fixed assets were funded by capital contnbutions or were donated by the local authority
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Balance at

31 August Incoming Resources Gains, losses Balance at 31
Outwood Academy Portland 2011 Resources Expended and transfers  August 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 1,920 (1,780) 14 154
Start Up Grant 58 (58) - -
Other DfE/EFA Grants 29 (6) - 23
Other Grants 4 (4) - -
Other Income 116 (116) - -
Pension Reserve (1,414) - (86) {1,500}
Restricted fixed asset funds
Capital expenditure from GAG - - 9 9
Sponsorship 369 (22} - 347
Total Restricted Funds 1,082 {1,986} (63) (967)
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 1,431 - - 1,431
Total unrestricted funds 1,431 - - 1,431
Total funds 2,513 {1,986} (63) 464
The speafic purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows
{1) General Annual Grant {GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the academies Each
Academy Is allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the General Annual Grant (GAG) received 1 the
year
{u) Start up grant i1s intended to cover expenditure on acquiring teaching and learning materials and to

cover problems regarding economies of scale

() Other DfE/EFA grants include a range of grants which are to be used for educational purposes These
include Bursary Fund and Summer School grants

{iv) Other grants include SEN low incidence funding

{v} The gross transfer from the restricted general fund to the restricted fixed asset fund represents the
total capital expenditure funded from the General Annual Grant in the year

{v1) Restricted fixed assets were funded by government grants or were donated by the local authonity
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Balance at
31 August Incoming Resources Gains, losses Balance at 31
Outwood Academy Valley 2011 Resources Expended and transfers  August 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant {GAG) - 1,946 (1,768) (78} 100
Start Up Grant - 51 (51) - -
Other Grants - 81 {81) - -
Pension Reserve - (1,706) - (98) {1,804)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Capital expenditure from GAG - - - 98 a8
Sponsorship - 940 (54} - 886
Total Restricted Funds - 1,312 {1,954} (78) (720)
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds - 890 - - 890
Total unrestricted funds - 890 - - 890
Total funds - 2,202 {1,954} (78) 170

The specific purpases for which the funds are to be appled are as follows

0] General Annual Grant {GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the academies  Each

Academy Is allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the General Annual Grant (GAG) received in the
year
{un} Start up grant 1s intended to cover expenditure on acquiring teaching and learning maternals and to

cover problems regarding economies of scale

{m) Other grants include SEN low incidence funding

{iv) The gross transfer from the restricted general fund to the restricted fixed asset fund represents the
total capital expenditure funded from the General Annual Grant in the year

(v) Restricted fixed assets were funded by government grants or were donated by the local authority
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Balance at
Outwood Grange Academies 31 August Incoming Resources Gains, losses Balance at 31
Trust (Group Function} 2011 Resources Expended and transfers  August 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted genera! funds
Other DfE/EFA Grants 1,295 (1,295) -
Other Grants 40 (40) .
Restricted fixed asset funds - - -
Total Restricted Funds 1,335 {1,335) -
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 8 (8) -
Total unrestricted funds 8 (8) -
Total funds 1,343 (1,343) -
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be apphied are as follows
1} Other DfE/EFA grants include Lead-In grant and Additional Lead-In grant relating to the

management of the Portland and Valley schools prior to conversion to academy status

1)} Other grants include NLE Bursary grant

19. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Current assets
Current habilities

Pension scheme hability

Restricted  Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset
funds funds funds Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 26,267 26,267
5,410 10,878 760 17,048
- {(1,602) {759) {2,361)
- {6,312) - {6,312)
5,410 2,964 26,268 34,642
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20, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2012 2011
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided 1n the financial 1,159 621
statements
Authorised by Directors but not yet contracted 2,313 1,092

The above capital commitments will be met from accumulated surpluses and grants

21. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2012 the Trust was committed to making the following annual payments under non-cancellable

operating leases as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000
Land and buildings
Expiring within one year 2 -
Expiring within two and five years inclusive 24 -
Expiring in over five years 1,322 -
Other
Expiring wathin one year 21 5
Expiring within two and five years inclusive 43 19
Expiring in over five years 37 6

1,459 30
22. RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM 2012 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES £000 £000
Net income 7,400 5,409
Depreciation {note 13) 1,098 587
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (249) (651}
Interest receivable {(note 5) (115) (18}
Non-cash donations {assets donated) (4,368) -
Cash transferred on conversion (2,612) -
Pension deficit transferred on conversion 3,745 -
FRS17 pension cost less contributions payable (note 28) 151 196
FRS 17 pension finance income {note 28) 81 39
{Increase) /decrease In stocks 1 (3)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (2,858) (1,008)
Increase f{decrease) in creditors 543 (180}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,817 4,371
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23. RETURNS ON INVESTMENT AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

2012 2011

£000 £000

Interest received 105 18

Net cash inflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance 105 18
24. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENT

2012 2011

£000 £000

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,560} (3,208)

Capital grants from DFE/EFA 249 651

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (2,311) (2,557)

25. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

At 1 September Cash flows At 31 August

2011 2012

£000 £000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 7,581 5,223 12,804

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the Funding Agreements, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset
for which a Government capital grant was received, the Trust 1s required either to reinvest the proceeds or to
repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as
equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State

Upon termination of the Funding Agreements, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Trust serving
notice, the Trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to

a) The value at the time of the Trust’s site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the Trust
and

b) The extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the Secretary
of State under the Funding Agreement

27. MEMBERS’ LIABILITY

Each member of the charntable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he/she 1s a member, or within one financial year after he/she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she
ceases 1o be a member
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28. PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The Trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and
Wwales {TPS) for academic and related staff, the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching
staff, which are managed by the West Yorkshire Pension Scheme for Qutwood Grange {“WYPF”), the South
Yorkshire Pension Fund for Adwick (“SYPF”), the North Yorkshire Penston Fund for Ripon (“NYPF”), and the
Nottinghamshire Pension Fund for Portland and Valley (“NPF”) Both the TPS and the LGPS are defined —
benefit schemes

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2004 and of the LGPS 31 March 2010

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS 15 a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme The regulations under which the TPS operates are
the Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010

Although teachers and lecturers are employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits,
including annual increases payable under the Pensions (Increase) Acts are, provided for in the Superannuation
Act 1972, paid out of monies provided by Parliament Under the unfunded TPS, teachers’ contributions on a
‘pay as you go’ basis, and employers’ contributions, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements
governed by the above Act

The Teachers’ Pension Regulations require an annual account, the Teachers’ Pension Budgeting and Valuation
Account, to be kept of receipts and expenditure {including the cost of pensions’ increases) From 1 April 2001,
the Account has been credited with a real rate of return {in excess of price increases and currently set at 3 5%),
which 15 equivalent to assuming that the balance in the account 1s invested in notional investments that
produce the real rate of return

The Government Actuary {(“GA”), using normal actuanal principles, conducts formal actuarial reviews of the
TPS The aim of the reviews is to specify the level of future contributions

The contribution rate paid into the TPS Is assessed in two parts First, a standard contribution rate (“SCR”) 15
determined This I1s the contribution, expressed as a percentage of the salaries of teachers and lecturers in
service or entering service during the period over which the contribution rate applies, which if it were paid
over the entire active service of these teachers and lecturers would broadly defray the cost of benefits payable
in respect of that service Secondly, a supplementary contribution 1s payable if, as a result of the actuanal
investigation, it ts found that accumulated habilities of the Account for benefits to past and present teachers
are not fully covered by standard contnbutions to be paid in future and by the notional fund built up from past
contributions The total contributions rate payable 1s the sum of the SCR and the supplementary contnibution
rate

The last valuation of the TPS related to the period 1 April 2001 — 31 March 2004 The GA's report of October
2006 revealed that the total labilities of the Scheme (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of
future benefits) amounted to £166,500 million The value of the assets (estimated future contributions
together with the proceeds from the notional investments held at the valuation date) was £163,240 million
The assumed real rate of return 1s 3 5% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earmings The real rate of
earnings growth 1s assumed to be 1 5% The assumed gross rate of return 15 6 5%

As from 1 January 2007, and as part of the cost-sharing agreement between employers’ and teachers’
representatives, the SCR was assessed at 19 75%, and the supplementary contnibution rate was assessed to be
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0 75% (to balance assets and habilities as required by the regulations within 15 years) This resulted in a totai
contribution rate of 20 5%, which translated into an employee contribution rate of 6 4% and employer
contribution rate of 14 1% payable The cost-sharing agreement also introduced - effective for the 2008
valuation — a 14% cap on employer contributions payable

From 1 Apnl 2012 to 31 March 2013, the employee contribution rate will range between 6 4% and 8 8%,
depending on a member’s Full ime Equivalent salary Further changes to the employee contribution rate will
be applied in 2013-14 and 2014-15

Actuanal scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors Many of these are being discussed in the context of the design of a reformed TPS and
scheme valuations are, therefore, currently suspended The Government, however, has set out a future
process for determining the employer contribution rate under the new scheme, and this process will involve a
full actuanal valuation

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard {FRS 17) Retirement Benefits, the TPS 1s a multi-
employer pension scheme The trust i1s unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and habilities of the
scheme Accordingly, the trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 17 and has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as If It were a defined contribution scheme The trust has set out above the
infarmation available on the scheme and the imphcations for the trust in terms of the anticipated contnbution
rates

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS 15 a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee administered funds The
total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2012 was £967k, of which employer’s contributions
totalled £674k and employees’ contributions totalled £293k The agreed contribution rates and estimated
value of contnibutions for the year ended 31 August 2013 are as follows

Pension Fund Employers % £k
WYPF — Qutwood Grange 139 269
SYPF — Adwick 12 2 97
NYPF — Ripon 127 74
NPF - Portland and Valley 183 369

Principal actuarial assumptions

WYPF 31 August 31 August
2012 % 2011 %
Rate of increase in salarnes 47 51
Rate of increase for pensions in 22 27
payment
Discount rate for hiabilities 42 54
Inflation assumption [CPI) 22 27
Commutation of pensions to S0 50
lump sums
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SYPF 31 August 31 August
2012 % 2011 %
Rate of increase in salanes 405 445
Rate of increase in pensions 23 27
Discount rate for habilhities 45 53
Inflation assumption (CP1) 23 27
Commutation of pensions to 50 50
lump sums
NYPF 31 August 31 August
2012 % 2011 %
Rate of increase in salaries 405 445
Rate of increase in pensions 23 27
Discount rate for habihties 45 53
Inflation assumption {CPI) 23 27
Commutation of pensions to 50 50
lump sums
NPF - Portland 31 August 31 May
2012 % 2012 %
Rate of increase in salaries 41 42
Rate of increase Iin pensions 19 20
Discount rate for habilities 39 41
Inflation assumption {CPI) 19 20
Commutation of pensions to 50 50
lump sums
NPF - Valley 31 August 31 May
2012 % 2012 %
Rate of increase in salaries 41 42
Rate of increase in pensions 19 20
Discount rate for habihties 39 41
Inflation assumption {(CPI} 19 20
Commutation of pensions to 50 50
lump sums

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvement in mortality rates The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are

WYPF 31 August 2012 31 August 2011
Years Years
Retiring today - Males 220 219
Retiring today - Females 241 24 0
Retiring 1n 20 years Males 238 237
Retinng 1n 20 years Females 261 260
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SYPF 31 August 2012 31 August 2011
Years Years
Retiring today - Males 218 214
Retiring today - Females 246 241
Retiring in 20 years - Males 236 228
Retiring in 20 years - Females 265 257
NYPF 31 August 2012 31 August 2011
Years Years
Retiring today - Males 225 221
Retiring today - Females 252 247
Retiring In 20 years - Males 24 3 235
Retining in 20 years - Fermales 27 2 263
NPF - Portland 31 August 2012 31 August 2011
Years Years
Retiring today - Males 186 -
Retiring today - Females 227 -
Retiring in 20 years - Males 206 -
Retiring in 20 years - Females 24 5 -
NPF - Valiey 31 August 2012 31 August 2011
Years Years
Retiring today - Males 18 6 -
Retiring today - Females 227 -
Retiring in 20 years - Males 206 -
Retirning in 20 years - Females 245 -

s  The Trusts share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme and expected rate of return were:

WYPF Expected return at Fair value at 31 Expected return at Fair value at 31

31 August 2012 (% | August 2012 £000 | 31 August 2011 (% | August 2011 £000
pa) pa)

Equities 75 2,324 77 2,002

Property 70 120 72 99

Government Bonds 25 442 37 318

Corporate Bonds 32 190 48 109

Cash 13 93 16 58

Other 75 156 77 153

Total market value 6.4 3,325 7.0 2,739

of assets

Present value of 5,506 4,078

scheme liabilities

s funded

Surplus {deficit) in (2,181) (1,339)

the scheme

Outwood Grange Academy employs a building block approach in determining the rate of return on Fund
assets Historical markets are studied and assets with higher volatility are assumed to generate higher returns
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consistent with widely accepted capital market principles The assumed rate of return on each asset class is set
out within this note The overall expected return on assets I1s then denved by aggregating the expected return
for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the Fund at 31 August 2012

SYPF Expected rate of Fair value at 31 Expected rate of Fair value at 31
return at 31 August | August 2012 £000 return at 31 August | August 2011 £000
2012 2011
(% pa) (% pa)
Equities 7 1,619 7 1,388
Property 6 239 6 210
Government Bonds 25 361 37 334
Corporate Bonds 34 204 43 154
Cash 05 65 05 53
Other n/a 0 n/a 0
Total market value 5.57 2,488 5.85 2,139
of assets
Present value of 2,584 2,040
scheme habilities
¢ funded
Surplus (deficit) in {96) 99
the scheme

For the SYPF the expected rate of return on plan assets s based on market expectations, at the beginning
of the period, for investment returns over the entire ife of the related obligatton The assumption used 1s
the average of the following assumptions appropriate to the individual asset classes by the proportion of
the assets Iin the particular asset class

The assumed investrent return on government bonds 1s the yield on 20-year fixed interest gilts at the
relevant date At 31 August 2012 the yield was 2 5% p a

The expected investment return on corporate bonds is based on market yields at the relevant date, less a
reduction to reflect a nisk of default in the corporate bond yield This means that the expected return on
corporate bond investments is lower than the discount rate used in the calculations As at 31 August 2012
the expected return of 3 4% p a 15 calculated as the relevant yield of 3 9% p a onBoxx corporate bonds
of over 15 years duration less an allowance for the risk of default of 0 5% p a

It 15 generally accepted that the yield on equity iInvestments will contain an “equity nsk premium” in
addition to the yield on Government bonds, which are perceived as the “least-risk” investment class, 1n
order to compensate investors for the additional rnisk of holding this type of investment Historical excess
equity returns over more than 100 years have been approximately 4% p a on average However, the level
of equity nisk premium can vary from time to time dependent on market levels and expectations for future
returns The actuary has taken the overall expected return on equities as at 31 August 2012 a5 7% p a
implying an equity nsk premium on equities of 4 5% p a over and above the gilt yield of 2 5% p a

The average return on property investments has been taken to be 1% p a below long-term average equity
returns
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NYPF Expected rate of Fair value at 31 Expected rate of Fair value at 31
return at 31 August | August 2012 £000 | return at 31 August | August 2011 £000
2012 2011
(% pa) (% pa)
Equities 7 73 7 N/A
Property 6 2 6 N/A
Government Bonds 25 13 37 N/A
Corporate Bonds 34 14 48 N/A
Cash 05 1 05 N/A
Other 7 - 7 N/A
Total market vatue 5.52 103 594 N/A
of assets
Present value of 834 N/A
scheme hiahiliies
s funded
Surplus (deficit} in {731) N/A
the scheme

For the NYPF the expected rate of return on plan assets 1s based on market expectations, at the beginning
of the period, for iInvestment returns over the entire ife of the related obligation The assumption used 1s
the average of the following assumptions appropnate to the individual asset classes weighted by the

proportion of assets in the particular asset class

The assumed investment return on government bonds 15 the yield on 20-year fixed interest gilts at the
relevant date At 31 August 2012 the yield was 25%p a

The expected investment return on corporate bonds is based on market yields at the relevant date, less a
reduction to reflect a risk of default in the corporate bond yield This means that the expected return on
corporate bond investments 1s lower than the discount rate used in the calculations As at 31 August 2012
the expected return of 3 4% p a 1s calculated as the relevant yield of 3 9% p a onBoxx corporate bonds
of over 15 years duration less an allowance for the risk of default of 0 5% p a

It 1s generally accepted that the yield on equity investments will contain an “equity risk premium” in
addition to the yield on Government bonds, which are perceived as the “least-risk” investment class, in
order to compensate investors for the additional risk of holding this type of investment Historical excess
equity returns over more than 100 years have been approximately 4% p a on average However, the level
of equity nsk premium can vary from time to time dependent on market levels and expectations for future
returns The actuary has taken the overall expected return on equities as at 31 August 2012as7%p a
implying an equity nsk premium on equities of 4 5% p a over and above the gilt yield of 2 5% p a

The average return on property investments has been taken to be 1% p a below long-term average equity

returns
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NPF - Portland Expected rate of Fair value at 31 Expected rate of Fair value at 31
return at 31 August | August 2012 £000 | return at 31 August | August 2011 £000
2012 2011

(% pa) (% pa)
Equities 55 704 N/A N/A
Property 45 137 N/A N/A
Government Bonds 28 105 N/A N/A
Corporate Bonds 39 42 N/A N/A
Cash 05 42 N/A N/A
Other 55 21 N/A N/A
Total market value 1,051 N/A N/A
of assets
Present value of 2,551 N/A N/A
scheme habilities
» funded
Surplus (deficit} in (1,500) N/A
the scheme
NPF - Valley Expected rate of Fair value at 31 Expected rate of Fair value at 31

return at 31 August | August 2012 £000 | return at 31 August | August 2011 £000

2012 2011

(% pa} (% pa)
Equities 565 790 N/A N/A
Property 45 153 N/A N/A
Government Bonds 28 118 N/A N/A
Corporate Bonds 39 47 N/A N/A
Cash 05 47 N/A N/A
Other 55 24 N/A N/A
Total market value 1,179 N/A
of assets
Present value of 2,983 N/A N/A
scheme habilities
* funded
Surplus (deficit) in (1,804) N/A
the scheme

For the NPF the expected return on assets i1s based on the long-term future expected investment return for
each asset class as at the beginning of the period {1e as at 2 June 2012 for the period to 31 August 2012) The
returns on gilts and other bonds are assumed to be the gilt yield and corperate bond yield respectively at the
relevant date The returns on equities and property are then assumed to be a margin above gilt yields
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»  Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

WYPF
2012 2011
£000 £000
Current service cost {net of 3310 3600
employee contributions)
Past service cost - -
Total Operating Charge 331.0 360.0
Analysis of pension finance
income / (costs)
Expected return on pension {196 0) {155 0)
scheme assets
Interest on pension habilities 2320 191 0
Pension finance income 36.0 36.0
SYPF
2012 2011
£000 £000
Current service cost {net of 1620 1880
employee contributions)
Past service cost 0 -
Total Operating Charge 162.0 188.0
Analysis of pension finance
income [ {costs)
Expected return on pension (129 0) {99 0)
scheme assets
Interest on pension habilities 1130 1020
Pension finance income [ {costs) (16} 3.0
NYPF
2012 2011
£000 £000
Current service cost 72 N/A
Past service cost - N/A
Total Operating Charge 72 N/A
Analysis of pension finance
income / {costs)
Expected return on pension (3) N/A
scheme assets
Interest on pension habilities 36 N/A
Pension finance income [ {costs) 33 N/A
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NPF - Portland
2012 2011
£000 £000
Current service cost 57 N/A
Past service cost - N/A
Total Operating Charge 57 N/A
Analysis of pension finance
income / {costs}
Expected return on pension {12) N/A
scheme assets
Interest on pension habilities 25 N/A
Pension finance income / (costs) 13 N/A
NPF - Valley
2012 2011
£000 £000
Current service cost 51 N/A
Past service cost - N/A
Total Operating Charge 51 N/A
Analysis of pension finance
income / (costs)
Expected return on pension (14} N/A
scheme assets
Interest on pension lliabilities 29 N/A
Pension finance income / (costs) 15 N/A

The actuarial gains and losses for the current year are recognised in the statement of financial activities The
cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised In the statement of financial activities since the
adoption of FRS 17 1s a £541,000 loss {2011 £554,000 gan)

¢ Movements in the present value of defined benefit cbligations were as follows.

WYPF
2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1 September 4,078 3,685.0
Current service cost 3310 3600
Interest cost 2320 1910
Employee contributions 1050 98 0
Actuanal (gain) / loss 7570 (213 0)
Benefits paid 30 {43 0)
Past Service cost - -
Curtailments and settlements - -
At 31 August 5,506 0 4,078.0
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SYPF
2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1 September 2,640 0 1,963.0
Current service cost 1620 188 0
Interest cost 1130 1020
Employee contributions 570 580
Actuanal (gain) / loss 2360 {271 0)
Benefits paid - -
Past Service cost - -
Benefits/transfers paid (24 0) -
At 31 August 2,584.0 2,040.0
NYPF
2012
£000
At 1 September 0
Current service cost 72
Interest cost 36
Employee contributions 25
Actuanal {gain) / loss 76
Benefits paid -
Past Service cost -
Business combinations 625
At 31 August 834
NPF - Portland
2012
£000
At 1 June 2,408
Current service cost 57
Interest cost 25
Employee contributions 16
Actuarial {gain} / loss 69
Benefits pard (24)
Past Service cost -
Curtallments and settlements -
At 31 August 2,551
NPF - Valley
2012
£000
At 1 June 2,804
Current service cost 51
Interest cost 29
Employee contributions 15
Actuanial {gain) / loss 84
Benefits paid -
Past Service cost -
Curtallments and settlements -
At 31 August 2,983
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¢ Movements in the fair value of Trust's share of scheme assets

WYPF 2012 2011
At 1 September 2,739 2,207
Expected return on assets 196 0 1550
Actuanal gain/{loss) 430 200
Employer contributions 2390 2320
Employee contributions 1050 98 0
Benefits pard 30 (43 0)
At 31 August 3,325 2,739
SYPF 2012 2011
At 1 September 2,139.0 1,597
Expected return on assets 1290 99 0
Actuanial gain/(loss) 700 2650
Employer contributions 117 0 1200
Employee contributions 570 58 0
Benefits paid {24 0) 0
At 31 August 2,488 2,139
NYPF 2012

At 1 September 0

Expected return on assets 3

Actuanal gain/(loss) 2

Employer contributions 73

Employee contributions 25

Benefits paid -

At 31 August 103

NPF - Portiand 2012

At 1 June 994

Expected return on assets 12

Actuarial gain/{loss) [

Employer contributions 47

Employee contributions 16

Benefits paid {24)

At 31 August 1,051

NPF - Valley 2012

At 1 June 1,098

Expected return on assets 14

Actuarial gain/({loss) 6

Employer contributions 46

Employee contrnibutions 15

Benefits paid -

At 31 August 1,179
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e The three-year history of experience adjustments s as follows

WYPF 2012 £000 2011 £000 2010 £000
Present value of defined (5,506) (4,078) (3,685)
henefit obligations
Fair value of scheme assets 3,325 2,739 2,207
{Deficit} in the scheme {2,181) (1,339) (1,478)

SYPF 2012 £000 2011 £000 2010 £000
Present value of defined (2,584) {2,040) {1,963)
benefit obligations
Fair value of scheme assets 2,488 2,139 1,597
Surplus / {Deficit) in the (96) 99 (366}
scheme

NYPF 2012 £000
Present value of defined {834)
benefit obligations
Fair value of scheme assets 103
Surplus / (Deficit} in the {731}
scheme

NPF - Portland 2012 £000 1 lune 2012
£000
Present value of defined (2,551) {(2,408)
benefit obligations
Fair value of scheme assets 1,051 994
Surplus / {Deficit) in the (1,500) (1,414)
scheme
NPF - Valley 2012 £000 1 June 2011
£000

Present value of defined {2,983) (2,804}
benefit obligations
Fair value of scheme assets 1,179 1,098
Surplus / (Deficit) in the {1,804) (1,7086)
scheme
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Experience adjustments on share of scheme assets

2012 £000 2011 £000 2010 £000
WYPF 43 90 -
SYPF 70 265 -
NYPF 2 - -
NPF - Portland 6 - -
NPF - Valley 6 - -

s  Expernence adjustments on scheme ltabtlities

2012 £000 2011 £000 2010 £000
WYPF - 336 -
SYPF - 33 -
NYPF - - -
NPF - Portland - - -
NPF - Valley - - -

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Trust made the following recharges to Outwood Grange Consultancy Company Limited, a
company with a number of Directors in common

¢ Recharges of teaching salanes - £l (2011 - £179,000), recharges of support costs - £nil (2011 -
£26,000) At the year-end a balance of £213,712 {2011 - £83,000) was due from Outwood Grange
Consultancy Company, which is included in year-end debtors This danation was the final distnbution
of Outwood Grange Consultancy Company’s assets and this company has now been hquidated

During the year the Trust made the following recharges to Outwood Sports and Leisure Company Limited, a i
company with a number of Directors in common

e Recharges of support costs — £44,231 (2011 - £9,000} At the year-end a balance of £17,528 (2011 -
£6,636) was due from Outwood Grange Sports and Leisure Company Limited

During the year the Trust made the followsng recharges to Outwood Grange Services Limited, a company with
a number of Directors in commaon

e Recharge of support costs £38,364 {2011 - £ril) At the year-end a balance of £11,273 (2011 - £nil)
was due from Outwood Grange Services Limited

During the year Qutwood Grange Sports and Leisure Company made a donation of £3,983 to the Trust (2011 -
£1,858)

A donation of £819,000 was recewed from Outwood Grange School Fund Chanty This donation is restricted
for the specific purpose of the development of the Qutwood Grange Academy buildings and site to provide
students with improved facihties

During the year the Trust paid legal fees of £33,685 on behalf of J Walkden, the former chairman Permission
from the Charities Comnussion was obtained prior to this being paid
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Prior to them being appointed as directors, S Harness and D Earnshaw were paid £35,027 and £39,304
respectively on fixed term contracts, vetted and approved by the DfE, for project management work on
conversion of two schools to academies This employment ceased pnior to their commencement as directors

There were school funds at the former Ripon, Portland and Valley schools which became under common
control following the date of conversion to academy status These have not been consolidated as they are not
matenal and there have been no transactions between the Trust and the school funds

30. CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST

The dates that three maintained schools converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and
all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Outwood Grange Academies Trust hmited
from the relevant local authonties for £nil consideration are shown below

Academy Date of conversion
Ripon 1 September 2011
Portland 1lune 2012

Valley 1 June 2012

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method The assets and liabilities transferred
were valued at their fair value and recogrused in the balance sheet under the appropriate heading with a
corresponding net amount recognised as net Income in the Statement of Financial Activities as voluntary
iIncome

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and habilities and an analysis of their
recognition in the SOFA

Ripon
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Funds General Fund Fixed Asset
Funds

£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets
+  Freehold/leasehold land and - - 2,912 2,912

bulldings

¢  Other tangible fixed assets - - 147 147
Budget surplus/(deficit) on LA funds 302 - - 302
Budget surplus on other school - - - -
funds
LGPS pension surplus/(deficit) - {625) - (625)
Other identified assets and - - - -
liabihties
Net assets/{habilities) 302 {625} 3,059 2,736
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31.

Portland

Tangible fixed assets

*  Freehold/leasehold land and
buildings

s  Other tangible fixed assets

Budget surplus/{deficit) on LA funds
Budget surplus on other school
funds

LGPS pension surplus/{deficit)
Other identified assets and
habilities

Net assets/{ltabilities)

Valley

Tangible fixed assets

*  Freehold/leasehold land and
bwldings

*  Other tangible fixed assets

Budget surplus/(deficit) on LA funds
Budget surplus on other school
funds

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)
Other identified assets and

liabihities

Net assets/(labilities)

Post balance sheet events

VA

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Funds General Fund Fixed Asset
Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 369 369
1,424 - - 1,424
- (1,414) - (1,414)
1,424 {1,414} 369 379
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Funds General Fund Fixed Asset
Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 940 940
886 - - 886
- {1,7086) - {1,706)
886 (1,706) 940 120

On 1 December 2012, Ledger Lane Primary School became an academy as part of Cutwood Grange

Academies Trust
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